
 
 

HAYS AREA PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA 
CITY COMMISSION CHAMBERS  

1507 MAIN, HAYS, KS 
JANUARY 19, 2015 

6:30 P.M.   
  

1. CALL TO ORDER BY CHAIRMAN. 

2. CONSENT AGENDA. 

A. Minutes of the regular meeting of December 15, 2014. 

  Action:  Consider approving the minutes of the December 15, 2014 meeting 

3. PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS.  

          A.  Public Hearing for the rezoning of Lots 7 thru 20 in the proposed Z M M Development 
      Addition from “R-1” Single-Family Dwelling District to “R-3” Two Family Dwelling District:  

Action:  Consider a recommendation to the City Commission for the rezoning of Lots 
7 thru 20 in the proposed Z M M Development Addition from “R-1” Single-Family 
Dwelling District to “R-3” Two-Family Dwelling District.       

4. NON-PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS.                    

A. Consider Setting a Public Hearing for the rezoning of the proposed Clubhouse Gardens 
II Addition from “A-L”  Agriculture to “R-3N” Two Family Neighborhood Dwelling District:  

Action:  Consider setting a public hearing for the rezoning of the proposed Clubhouse 
Gardens II Addition from “A-L” Agriculture to “R-3N” Two Family Neighborhood 
Dwelling District. 

5. OFF AGENDA ITEMS/COMMUNICATIONS. 

 A.  City Commission action and planning and development updates on Planning 
Commission related issues 

B.  Update on the Zoning and Subdivision Regulation Rewrite 

C.    Other            

6. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

 

 

Any person with a disability and needing special accommodations to attend this meeting should contact the Planning, Inspection and 
Enforcement office (785-628-7310) 48 hours prior to the scheduled meeting time.  Every attempt will be made to accommodate any 
requests for assistance. 



 

 1

DRAFT 
HAYS AREA PLANNING COMMISSION  

CITY HALL IN COMMISSION CHAMBERS  
DECEMBER 15, 2014  

MINUTES  
6:30 P.M.  

 
1. CALL TO ORDER BY CHAIRMAN:    The Hays Area Planning Commission met on 
their regularly scheduled meeting on Monday, December 15, at 6:30 p.m. in 
Commission Chambers at City Hall.  Chairman Paul Phillips declared that a quorum 
was present and called the meeting to order.    
 
Roll Call: 
  
Present    Paul Phillips      Lou Caplan       Matthew Wheeler      Travis Rickford 
                Jake Glover      Pam Rein         Justin McClung            Kris Munsch                  
                  
Absent:    Tom Denning            
                  
City Staff in attendance:  Paul Briseno, Assistant City Manager, I.D. Creech, Director 
of Public Works, John Braun, Assistant Director of Public Works, Jesse Rohr, 
Superintendent and Linda Bixenman, Administrative Assistant of Planning, 
Inspection and Enforcement.   
 
2.      CONSENT AGENDA:    
 
          A.      Minutes:   Kris Munsch moved, Lou Caplan seconded the motion to 
approve the minutes from the November 17, 2014 meeting. There were no 
corrections or additions to those minutes.   
 
Vote: AYES  Paul Phillips      Lou Caplan       Matthew Wheeler       Travis Rickford 
                    Jake Glover      Pam Rein          Justin McClung            Kris Munsch          
 
3.     PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS: 
 
         A.      None. 
 
4.    NON-PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS:  
 
       A.    Final Plat of Clubhouse Gardens II:    Jesse Rohr explained that the final 
plat approved by the Planning Commission on November 17, 2014 was brought 
back because there was a change to remove the access easement that was 
platted with each lot for the purpose of easier recording and legal description.  
The access easement becomes its own parcel managed through a homeowners 
association set up in the plat and dedication.  The lot size changed from 131 feet in 
depth to 116 feet, although it is the same buildable area.   
 



 

 2

 
The first phase was set up with the access easement being its own parcel, the 
same as this revised plat.    
 
The access control along Hall Street is reflected on the revised plat per the 
recommendation by the Planning Commission from the November meeting. 
 
Lou Caplan asked if the change was made because if would be easier to turn 
over to the city if they do not take care of the streets.   
 
Pam Rein asked why the city allowed private access easements.   Jesse Rohr 
explained that the city would not be able to access this development because 
access is from a private drive (Clubhouse Drive); therefore this was the best way to 
handle this infill development. 
 
Paul Phillips asked if the homeowners association is yet to be set up.  Jesse Rohr 
answered that it would have to be set up in the plat and dedication that is 
required before final action by the City Commission for plat approval.   
 
Jesse Rohr explained another development with a private drive extension (Judith 
Drive) set up as a separate parcel.  The taxes, maintenance etc are paid through 
the homeowners association.   
 
Jake Glover asked if the city would have to go in and maintain the private access 
easement if the homeowners association did not meet their stated obligation.   
Jesse Rohr answered that the private access easement is a driveway privately 
owned by the adjacent property owners.   There are mechanisms in place that 
assessments could be levied to adjacent property owners for repairs and taxes. 
 
Paul Phillips entertained a motion.  
 
Lou Caplan moved, Matthew Wheeler seconded the motion to recommend to 
the City Commission to approve the revised final plat of Clubhouse Gardens II.  
 
Vote: AYES  Paul Phillips      Lou Caplan       Matthew Wheeler       Travis Rickford 
                    Jake Glover      Pam Rein          Justin McClung            Kris Munsch          
 
       B.      Set a Public Hearing for Rezoning of Lots 7 through 20 in the proposed Z M 
M Development Addition from “R-1” Single Family Dwelling District to “R-3” Two 
Family Dwelling District: (Replat of Block 4, Seven Hills Addition):  Jesse Rohr 
presented a power point presentation that included the location of the subject 
property.   The property is located north of 33rd Street next to Seven Hills Park east 
of Hall Street. 
 
This is to set a public hearing for January 19, 2015 to consider the applicant’s 
request to rezone Lots 7 through 20 of the proposed Z M M Development Addition 
from “R-1” Single Family Dwelling District to “R-3” Two-Family Dwelling District.   The 



 

 3

proposed final plat was approved at the November Planning Commission.  The 
interior lots of the proposed plat are requested to be rezoned.   
 
The Comprehensive Plan identifies this area as “civic uses” because it was owned 
by the School District at the time.  Now that it is privately owned, the surrounding 
area is looked at for the best use.   
 
The development is zoned “R-1” Single Family.  The adjacent properties are zoned 
as follows:    
       “R-1” Single Family Dwelling to the south  
        “R-2” Single Family Dwelling and “R-4” Multi-family Dwelling to the north 
        “R-4” Multi-family Dwelling District to the west  
        “R-1” Single Family Dwelling; although this is location of Seven Hills Park – East  
                             
Paul Phillips asked if the outside lots would be the buffer between single family 
dwellings and two-family dwellings.  Jesse Rohr answered that would be a buffer. 
  
Lou Caplan asked if the lots were large enough to build duplexes.    Jesse Rohr 
answered that they would be large enough to build duplexes (72 foot wide lots). 
 
He explained about the publication notice for the public hearing and the 
notification process. 
 
Paul Phillips entertained a motion. 
 
Kris Munsch moved, Pam Rein seconded the motion to set the public hearing for 
January 19, 2014 to consider the rezoning of lots 7 through 20 in the proposed Z M 
M Development Addition (Replat of Block 4, Seven Hills Addition) from “R-1” Single-
Family Dwelling District to “R-3” Two Family Dwelling District.     
 
Vote: AYES  Paul Phillips      Lou Caplan       Matthew Wheeler       Travis Rickford 
                    Jake Glover      Pam Rein          Justin McClung            Kris Munsch          
 
       C.    Update on the Zoning and Subdivision Regulations Rewrite: Jesse Rohr  
explained that the presentation from the consultant on Module II has been 
bumped to the January, 2015 meeting.  Staff reviewed the Module II and it is being 
revised by the consultants based on staff comments.  They will present a revised 
zoning map as well.      
 
The draft of Module II will be sent out to the commission and the other committees 
and contacts upon receipt.   He has notified all committees and residents that are 
associated with this project of the change in the schedule. 
 
5.    OFF AGENDA ITEMS/COMMUNICATIONS: 

        
       A.   City Commission action and planning and development updates on 
Planning Commission issues.  Jesse Rohr presented the above updates: 



 

 4

 
The public hearing for F & F Iron requesting a Special Use Permit for a full service 
recycling center at 1201 General Custer was denied by the Hays Area Board of 
Zoning. 
 
Lou Caplan asked the City to look at the adopted zoning map to make sure 
properties are zoned appropriately.     
 
       B.     Other – Strong Towns.  Paul Briesno, Assistant City Manager presented a 
video associated with the booklet by “Strong Towns” that was handed out to the 
commission.  He explained that the City Manager has challenged city staff to look 
at the infrastructure and operations on how we got to where we are right now.   His 
challenge is to ensure growth and development be viewed as an investment with 
a positive return, not a future liability.  Does there need to be a change in the 
development process of how it may impact the future?  
 
He shared some data findings: the city increased in size from 100 acres in1990 to 
120 acres to and there was an increase in number of city employees etc.   
 
It was figured that 1.2 million dollars should be for street maintenance; although 
the city spends much less that what is needed for maintenance of the streets; 
around $535,000.00.   
         
The city infrastructure is paid for by gas sales taxes that help Hays maintain a low 
mill levy on property tax.  There was a chart in the hallway that reflected that Hays 
maintains a low mill levy compared to other cities in the state except Johnson 
County. 
 
He encouraged the members to read the booklet and view the web-site on Strong 
Towns.  
 
Paul Phillips asked if the direction is for higher density and less sprawl.  Educating 
the public to accept duplexes would be important. 
 
Paul Briseno stated that different design standards can help from the deterioration 
of properties as they age.   They want to look at the best management practices 
and implement them.  
 
Matthew Wheeler pointed out that there is no material that can last as long as the 
brick streets that have held up for 80 or 90 years.  He asked if the figures were 
skewed on street maintenance because the brick streets do not require much 
maintenance.  
 
John Braun answered that an algorithm of numbers were used to create the figure 
for the pavement assessment.   The brick streets did not skew the numbers.  The 
funding mechanism for the pavement maintenance is funded by the gas sales tax 
reimbursed by the state. 



 

 5

 
Paul Briseno added that there are no grants available anymore through the state 
for the shared cost of streets. 
 
Pam Rein noted that all cities have the same need for street maintenance.   
 
Travis Rickford asked for some examples that would cut the cost of street 
maintenance.  He asked if the direction is to make the streets narrower. 
 
Paul Phillips emphasized to keep the public apprised of this societal problem.  This is 
the key to success.          
      
Jesse Rohr stated that he would send the Planning Commission the video link that 
ties into the booklet handed out at the meeting. 
              
 
C.     Other – Training.  Travis Rickford asked if there could be a presentation by the 
City Attorney to the commission and other committees of legal aspects of their 
duties; what they can and cannot do.   He suggested January or February. 
 
Jesse Rohr answered that a time could be determined to have this presentation.  
 
D.     Other – 19th and Fort.  Paul Phillips inquired if the steel home being constructed 
on the property where there was a previous fire would fit into the neighborhood. 
 
Jesse Rohr explained that a residential line of the Cleary building was being 
constructed at the site of 20th and Fort.   They do meet the 2006 International 
Residential Code.  He said they are aware of it.   
 
He explained with the process of the rewrite of the zoning regulations, that it may 
require design guidelines. 
 
6.  ADJOURNMENT:  Lou Caplan adjourned the meeting at 7:23 p.m.        
 
Submitted by:  Linda K. Bixenman, Administrative Assistant 
                          Planning, Inspection and Enforcement  
 
       



Planning Commission Action Report 

AGENDA ITEM: Rezoning Request - Lots 7 through 20, ZMM 
Development Addition 

OWNER: ZMM LLC 

TYPE OF REVIEW: Rezoning from R-1 to R-3 (Two-Family Dwelling District) 

PRESENTED BY:  Jesse Rohr, P.I.E. Superintendent 

PREPARED DATE: January 12, 2015 

AGENDA DATE:  January 19, 2015 

SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
An application has been submitted to request a change of zoning from R-1 to R-3 for 
lots 7 through 20, ZMM Development Addition (See attached visuals). Based on the 
considerations of Staff Findings of Fact, staff recommends approval of the rezoning 
request and a favorable recommendation to the City Commission to change the 
zoning from R-1 (single-family dwelling district) to R-3 (two-family dwelling district). 

BACKGROUND: 
 

 This is infill development and is encouraged by staff as well as the 
Comprehensive Plan 

 The property abuts existing multi-family zoning (R-4)  

 Although the Comprehensive Plan identifies this immediate area as “Civic” 
(was owned by the School District), the surrounding areas are denoted as 
“Low Density” and “Medium Density” residential, therefore this is a fitting 
request. 

POINTS TO CONSIDER: 
 

 Staff feels the proposed layout and use of this property is the highest and best 
use for this property (26 residential lots, both single-family and two-family 
(proposed)).   

 

City of Hays 
Planning Inspection Enforcement 



 Page 2 

 The proposed rezoning request is a good fit for the property as surrounding 
properties are zoned R-1 (single-family) and R-4 (multi-family) and this is an 
area of anticipated infill growth. 

 
 The Comprehensive Plan identifies this area as “Civic Use” which rates a 4 

out of 5 on the compatibility matrix scale in the Comprehensive Plan, with 5 
being the most compatible. 

 All public utilities are in place allowing for development of this property 
including public water and sewer (only minor extensions required and will be 
paid for by the developer).   

OPTIONS: 
 

 Recommend to the City Commission APPROVAL of the rezoning request as 
submitted 

 
 Recommend denial of the rezoning request 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Based on the considerations of Staff Findings of Fact, staff recommends approval of 
the rezoning request and a favorable recommendation to the City Commission to 
change the zoning of lots 7-20 from R-1 (Single-Family Dwelling District) to R-3 (two-
family dwelling district). 







STAFF FINDING OF FACT 
 

1. CASE NO.:  14-04Z          FILING FEE PAID:  $140.00 
 
2. DATE FILED:  12/08/2014   
 
3. DATE ADVERTISED FOR HEARING:  12/21/2014  
 
4. PUBLIC HEARING DATE:  01/19/2015 
 
5. APPLICANT’S NAME:  ZMM LLC        

   
6. LOCATION OF PROPERTY:  NW corner of 33rd St & Canal Blvd 
7.  
8. DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY:  Lot 7 through Lot 20 of ZMM Development 

Addition, Ellis County, Kansas. 
 
9. PRESENT USE OF PROPERTY:  Vacant  
    
10. PRESENT ZONING:  “R-1” REQUESTED ZONING:  “R-3” 
 

 
1. CHARACTER OF THE NEIGHBORHOOD: 

DIRECTION 
 
 NORTH:  Multi-Family and Single Family  
 
 SOUTH:   Single-Family 
 
 EAST:      Seven Hills Park  
 
 WEST:     Multi-Family 
 
2. THE ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 

DIRECTION 
 
 NORTH:  “R-2” Single Family Dwelling District &  
                           “R-4” Multi-Family Dwelling Unit 
 
 SOUTH:  “R-1” Single Family Dwelling District  
 
 EAST:     “R-1” Single Family Dwelling District  
  
 WEST:    “R-4” Multi-Family Dwelling Unit  
 



3. CONSIDERATION OF THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF PERMANENT 
PROFESSIONAL STAFF:    The Area is identified on the zoning map of the 
Comprehensive plan as public use because it was owned by the School 
District at the time of the development of the 2012 Comprehensive Plan.   
It would be well suited for residential housing and duplexes which would 
be compatible with the surrounding neighborhood.  Lots 7-20 of the ZMM 
Development Addition are proposed to be zoned for duplex housing 
which would not be out of line from the surrounding areas, particularly the 
multi-family district to the west and the multi-family area to the north. 

4.  
A. DEDICATION OR RESERVATION NEEDED FOR: 

1. DRAINAGE:  Yes 
2. STREETS:  Yes 
3. UTILITY EASEMENTS: 

a. ELECTRICITY:  Yes 
b. GAS:  Yes 
c. SEWERS:  Yes 
d. WATER:  Yes 

4. SHOULD PLATTING BE REQUIRED:   Platting is in process (already 
approved by the Planning Commission) 

 
B. TRAFFIC CONDITIONS: 

1. CLASSIFICATION OF STREET ON WHICH PROPERTY FRONTS:  Local 
2. RIGHT-OF-WAY WIDTH:     60’ ROW for new extended 34th Street  
3. SIGHT DISTANCE:     OK 
4. TURNING MOVEMENTS:     OK 
5. COMMENTS ON TRAFFIC:     Local 

 
4. THE SUITABILITY OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY FOR THE USES TO WHICH IT HAS 

BEEN RESTRICTED:  This is a vacant tract of land surrounded by existing 
multi-family and residential land uses that would be an infill area for the 
proposed construction of duplexes that would be fitting to the area. 

 
5. THE EXTENT TO WHICH REMOVAL OF THE RESTRICTIONS WILL DETRIMENTALLY 

AFFECT NEARBY PROPERTY:  Changing the zoning classification from “R-1” 
Single Family Dwelling District to “R-3” Two-Family Dwelling District should 
not have a negative affect on nearby properties. 

 
6. THE LENGTH OF TIME THE SUBJECT PROPERTY HAS REMAINED VACANT AS 

ZONED:  With the exception of recreation uses, the property has been in its 
current state since the adoption of 3-mile zoning regulations – 40 plus 
years. 

 
7. THE RELATIVE GAIN TO THE PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY, AND WELFARE BY THE 

DESTRUCTION OF THE VALUE OF THE NEIGHBORING PROPERTY, AS 



COMPARED TO THE HARDSHIP IMPOSED ON THE INDIVIDUAL LANDOWNER:  
Neighboring property values should tend to increase as development 
takes place. The impact of the rezoning, if approved, should not be 
destructive to neighboring property and should actually enhance the 
surrounding area as development occurs. 

 
8. THE CONFORMANCE OF THE REQUESTED CHANGE TO THE ADOPTED OR 

RECOGNIZED MASTER PLAN BEING UTILIZED BY THE CITY:  The Area is 
identified on the zoning map of the Comprehensive plan as public use 
because it was owned by the School District at the time of the 
development of the 2012 Comprehensive Plan.   Now that it is privately 
owned, the surrounding area is looked at for the best use.  The surrounding 
areas are a mix of single family, multi-family, and recreation (park) uses.  
It would be well suited for residential housing and duplexes.     

   
           The request for the “R-3” two-family zoning classification does fit the 

overall scheme of the surrounding properties and that of the master plan.  
Staff does recommend the change of zoning from “R-1” Single Family 
Zoning Classification to “R-3” Two-Family Zoning Classification.  

 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







ZMM Development

jrohr
Rectangle

jrohr
Callout
LOCATION



ZMM Development

jrohr
Rectangle

jrohr
Text Box
Subject Property





jrohr
Polygon

jrohr
Callout
AREA OF REZONING FROM R-1 TO R-3



ZMM Addition

jrohr
Rectangle

jrohr
Callout
Area to be Rezoned to R-3

jrohr
Rectangle

jrohr
Callout
ZMM Addition Boundary



Memo 
DATE:  01-19-15 

TO:  Planning Commission 

FROM: Jesse Rohr 

RE: Clubhouse Gardens II Addition - Rezoning Request – A-L (Agriculture) 
to R-3N (Two-Family Neighborhood Dwelling District) - Background 
Summary 

An application has been submitted to request a change of zoning from A-L to R-3N 
for the Clubhouse Gardens II Addition (See attached visuals). 

Staff is requesting that the Planning Commission set a public hearing for the 
February 16, 2015 Planning Commission meeting to consider the rezoning request.  

A full Staff Findings of Fact will be presented prior to the public hearing.  Following is 
some information about the property to better help guide in the decision to set a 
public hearing for rezoning: 

 This is infill development and is encouraged by staff 

 The property abuts existing R-3N zoning (Clubhouse Gardens I) 

 Although the Comprehensive Plan identifies this immediate area as “Low 
Density Residential”, this request of a “Medium Density” residential zoning 
district is very compatible with the surrounding areas (Low Density to Medium 
Density ranks a 4 out of 5 for compatibility, with 5 being the highest, therefore 
this is a fitting request). 

Staff will be available to answer any questions regarding this zoning request or the 
development as a whole prior to the public hearing in January, if indeed a hearing is 
set. 

City of Hays 
Planning Inspection Enforcement 







Clubhouse Gardens II

jrohr
Rectangle

jrohr
Callout
Location



Clubhouse Gardens II

jrohr
Rectangle

jrohr
Callout
Subject Property



jrohr
Rectangle

jrohr
Callout
Area of Rezoning

jrohr
Text Box
CLUBHOUSE GARDENS II



Clubhouse Gardens II

jrohr
Rectangle

jrohr
Oval

jrohr
Oval

jrohr
Oval

jrohr
Oval

jrohr
Callout
SUBJECT PROPERTY

jrohr
Line

jrohr
Line

jrohr
Line

jrohr
Line


	01-19-2015 
	12-15-2014
	3  15-01-12 Lots 7-20 ZMM Addition Rezoning
	4  14-04
	5 14-04Z ZMM  R-2 to R-3 Changes of Zoning Classification
	6  200 feet
	7  2015_01_12_16_27_39
	8  ZMM Development Add  Plat (Rezoning Area)
	9  ZMM Development Add  Plat
	10 14-12-15 ZMM Development Zoning Map
	10 12 14-11-17 ZMM Development Aerial Image
	11 14-11-17 ZMM Development Area Map
	16 15-01-12 Memo to Planning Commission - Clubhouse Gardens II Rezoning Request
	17 Rezoning App Clubhouse Gardens
	18 14-11-17 Clubhouse Gardens II Aerial Image
	18 15-01-19 Clubhouse Gardens II Surrounding Zoning Map
	19 14-11-17 Clubhouse Gardens II Area Map
	20 15-01-19 Clubhouse Gardens II Zoning Area



